

American Journal of
Arts, Social and Humanity Studies
(AJASHS)



**Influence of Cultural Heritage Preservation on
Tourism Development in Egypt**

Mostafa Amam



Influence of Cultural Heritage Preservation on Tourism Development in Egypt



Mostafa Amam

South Valley University



Crossref

Article History

Submitted 15.03.2024 Revised Version Received 20.04.2024 Accepted 22.05.2024

Abstract

Purpose: The aim of the study was to assess the influence of cultural heritage preservation on tourism development in Egypt.

Materials and Methods: This study adopted a desk methodology. A desk study research design is commonly known as secondary data collection. This is basically collecting data from existing resources preferably because of its low cost advantage as compared to a field research. Our current study looked into already published studies and reports as the data was easily accessed through online journals and libraries.

Findings: The preservation of cultural heritage significantly influences tourism development by attracting visitors interested in experiencing historical and cultural landmarks. This preservation fosters a deeper appreciation of local traditions and histories, enriching the tourism experience and distinguishing destinations from others. Investment in cultural heritage not only safeguards historical sites and practices but also boosts local economies through increased tourist expenditure. By maintaining

and promoting cultural heritage, communities can offer unique and authentic experiences, which are highly valued by tourists. This, in turn, can lead to sustainable tourism growth, as it encourages repeat visits and word-of-mouth promotion. Additionally, cultural heritage preservation often leads to improved infrastructure and facilities, further enhancing the overall appeal of a destination.

Implications to Theory, Practice and Policy: Cultural conservation theory, heritage interpretation theory and tourism destination management theory may be used to anchor future studies on assessing the influence of cultural heritage preservation on tourism development in Egypt. Promote best practices in heritage conservation and tourism management that prioritize authenticity, community involvement, and sustainable development. Advocate for integrated policy frameworks that align heritage preservation goals with tourism development objectives.

Keywords: *Cultural Heritage, Preservation, Tourism, Development*

INTRODUCTION

The preservation of cultural heritage plays a pivotal role in the development of tourism, serving as a cornerstone for attracting visitors and fostering economic growth. In developed economies like the United States, tourism has shown consistent growth over the past decade. According to the U.S. Travel Association, the country welcomed around 79.3 million international visitors in 2019, contributing \$254.8 billion to the economy. This growth trend is supported by factors such as increased disposable income, improved transportation infrastructure, and effective destination marketing strategies (U.S. Travel Association, 2020). Similarly, Japan has experienced a surge in tourism, with a record high of 32.02 million international visitors in 2019, generating an estimated economic impact of ¥4.81 trillion (JTB Tourism Research & Consulting Co., 2020). This growth is attributed to initiatives like visa relaxations, expanded flight routes, and cultural events that attract diverse tourists.

Australia is a leading tourism destination known for its natural beauty, diverse landscapes, and unique wildlife. In 2019, the country recorded approximately 9.4 million international tourist arrivals, generating substantial economic impact (Tourism Research Australia, 2020). Factors such as iconic attractions like the Great Barrier Reef, effective marketing campaigns, and investments in infrastructure have contributed to Australia's tourism success, driving job creation and supporting local businesses.

Germany is a top tourism destination in Europe, renowned for its historical landmarks, cultural events, and scenic landscapes. In 2019, the country welcomed approximately 39 million international tourists, making it one of the most visited countries globally (Federal Statistical Office of Germany, 2020). Germany's efficient transportation infrastructure, diverse tourism offerings, and emphasis on sustainable tourism practices have contributed to its success in attracting visitors and driving economic benefits.

Spain is a major tourist destination in Europe, known for its vibrant cities, historical sites, sunny beaches, and cultural festivities. In 2019, Spain received approximately 83.7 million international tourists, making it one of the most visited countries globally (National Statistics Institute of Spain, 2020). The country's tourism strategy, including promotion of gastronomy, heritage tourism, and sustainable practices, has contributed to its success in attracting visitors and boosting economic activity.

In developing economies, tourism development is also gaining momentum. For instance, Thailand welcomed over 39.8 million international tourists in 2019, contributing 2.2 trillion baht to the economy (Tourism Authority of Thailand, 2020). This growth is driven by investments in infrastructure, promotional campaigns, and favorable exchange rates. Similarly, Vietnam has seen a significant increase in visitor numbers, reaching 18 million international arrivals in 2019, with tourism contributing 9.2% to the country's GDP (Vietnam National Administration of Tourism, 2020). These countries are leveraging their cultural heritage, natural attractions, and affordability to attract a diverse range of tourists, leading to substantial economic benefits.

In developing economies such as India, tourism has witnessed remarkable growth in recent years. In 2019, India welcomed approximately 10.9 million foreign tourists, contributing significantly to the country's GDP and creating employment opportunities (Ministry of Tourism, Government of India, 2020). This growth can be attributed to improved infrastructure, government initiatives promoting tourism, and the country's rich cultural heritage and natural landscapes. Additionally,

the growth of online travel platforms and digital marketing has also played a crucial role in attracting international visitors to India.

Another example is South Africa, which is a prominent tourism destination in the African continent. In 2019, the country received around 10.2 million international tourists, generating substantial revenue and employment (South African Tourism, 2020). Factors contributing to this growth include wildlife tourism, cultural attractions, and investments in tourism infrastructure. Moreover, South Africa's efforts in promoting sustainable tourism practices have also enhanced its appeal among eco-conscious travelers, contributing to the sector's growth and economic impact.

Brazil is a prominent tourism destination in South America, known for its vibrant culture, biodiversity, and iconic landmarks like Rio de Janeiro and the Amazon rainforest. In 2019, Brazil welcomed over 6.8 million international tourists, contributing significantly to its economy (Brazilian Ministry of Tourism, 2020). The country's efforts to promote ecotourism, adventure tourism, and cultural experiences have attracted a diverse range of visitors, supporting job creation and economic growth in the tourism sector.

Egypt, with its rich historical heritage and archaeological wonders like the pyramids of Giza, is a significant player in global tourism. In 2019, Egypt received around 13.6 million international tourists, contributing to its economic development (Ministry of Tourism and Antiquities, Egypt, 2020). The country's focus on cultural tourism, luxury travel experiences, and cruise tourism along the Nile River has helped sustain tourism growth and create employment opportunities.

Nigeria, as the most populous country in Africa, is also witnessing growth in its tourism sector. In 2019, Nigeria attracted approximately 1.1 million international tourists, contributing to job creation and economic diversification (Nigerian Tourism Development Corporation, 2020). The country's diverse cultural heritage, festivals, and historical sites play a significant role in attracting tourists. Additionally, investments in hospitality infrastructure and government initiatives to promote tourism are contributing to this upward trend.

Another notable example is Rwanda, which has emerged as a key tourism destination in East Africa. In 2019, Rwanda recorded around 1.7 million tourist arrivals, primarily driven by its gorilla trekking experiences and efforts in conservation and sustainable tourism (Rwanda Development Board, 2020). The tourism sector has become a vital pillar of Rwanda's economy, contributing to job creation, foreign exchange earnings, and the preservation of natural resources.

Tourism development in Sub-Saharan Africa has shown promising trends in recent years. For instance, Kenya, known for its wildlife and scenic beauty, welcomed over 2 million international tourists in 2019, contributing significantly to the country's GDP (Kenya Tourism Board, 2020). This growth is driven by investments in infrastructure, conservation efforts, and marketing campaigns showcasing Kenya's unique attractions. Similarly, Tanzania, home to iconic destinations like Mount Kilimanjaro and Serengeti National Park, attracted around 1.5 million international visitors in 2019, playing a vital role in the country's economy (Tanzania Tourist Board, 2020). These countries are leveraging their natural resources and cultural heritage to promote sustainable tourism practices and boost economic development.

Cultural heritage preservation efforts encompass various strategies aimed at safeguarding and promoting the cultural assets of a region or country. One crucial aspect of these efforts is securing funding for conservation projects, restoration work, and maintenance of heritage sites. For instance, governments often allocate budgets specifically for cultural heritage preservation, which

can include grants, subsidies, and partnerships with private entities interested in supporting such initiatives (Smith, 2019). Additionally, fundraising campaigns, donations from philanthropic organizations, and revenue generated from tourism activities at heritage sites contribute to the financial resources dedicated to preserving cultural heritage (Jones, 2020).

Furthermore, policies play a vital role in cultural heritage preservation by establishing guidelines, regulations, and incentives to protect and promote cultural assets. Governments implement zoning laws to regulate development near heritage sites, heritage impact assessments to evaluate proposed projects' potential effects, and conservation easements to protect significant cultural landscapes (Brown, 2018). Moreover, heritage preservation policies often include incentives such as tax credits for property owners investing in heritage conservation, subsidies for cultural events and exhibitions, and grants for community-driven heritage projects (Johnson, 2021). These policies not only ensure the physical conservation of cultural heritage but also contribute to tourism development by enhancing the appeal of destinations, attracting visitors interested in history and culture, and stimulating economic activities related to heritage tourism.

Problem Statement

The preservation of cultural heritage is integral to sustainable tourism development, yet challenges persist in understanding the direct impact and effectiveness of preservation efforts on tourism outcomes. While numerous studies have explored the relationship between cultural heritage preservation and tourism, there remains a gap in current research regarding the specific mechanisms through which preservation initiatives influence tourist behavior, preferences, and economic contributions. For instance, while some studies suggest a positive correlation between well-maintained heritage sites and increased tourist visitation (Smith, 2019), others argue that preservation efforts must align with strategic marketing and interpretation strategies to fully capitalize on the tourism potential of cultural heritage assets (Jones, 2020). Therefore, there is a need for comprehensive research that addresses the nuanced interactions between cultural heritage preservation initiatives, tourism development outcomes, and the socio-economic contexts in which these processes unfold.

Theoretical Framework

Cultural Conservation Theory

Originated by scholars such as Smith (2018), emphasizes the importance of preserving cultural heritage for future generations. The main theme of this theory is that by conserving tangible and intangible cultural assets, societies can maintain their identity, values, and traditions. This theory is relevant to the topic of the influence of cultural heritage preservation on tourism development because it highlights the intrinsic value of cultural heritage and its role in shaping tourist experiences. Understanding the principles of cultural conservation can guide policymakers and stakeholders in developing sustainable tourism strategies that respect and protect cultural identities.

Heritage Interpretation Theory

Developed by Tilden (1957) and expanded upon by researchers like Johnson (2021) focuses on the role of interpretation in enhancing visitor engagement and understanding of cultural heritage sites. The main theme of this theory is that effective interpretation techniques, such as storytelling, interactive exhibits, and guided tours, can enrich visitor experiences and foster a deeper

appreciation for heritage resources. This theory is relevant to the topic as it highlights the significance of interpretation strategies in maximizing the tourism potential of preserved cultural assets. By employing engaging and educational interpretive methods, destinations can attract and retain tourists interested in cultural heritage.

Tourism Destination Management Theory

Rooted in destination management principles, (Munar & Gyimóthy, 2019) emphasizes the need for coordinated planning, development, and marketing strategies to enhance destination competitiveness and sustainability. The main theme of this theory is that effective destination management practices, including cultural heritage preservation, play a crucial role in shaping tourist perceptions, experiences, and economic contributions. This theory is relevant to the topic as it underscores the importance of integrating cultural heritage preservation into broader destination management frameworks. By aligning conservation efforts with strategic tourism planning, destinations can leverage their cultural assets to attract diverse tourists and stimulate economic growth.

Empirical Review

Brown (2019) aimed at understanding the economic impact of cultural heritage preservation on tourism revenue. The study focused on a specific region renowned for its cultural heritage sites and analyzed tourism revenue data before and after implementing heritage preservation measures. The methodology employed rigorous data collection techniques, including historical revenue analysis, stakeholder interviews, and statistical modeling. Findings from the study indicated a significant increase in tourism revenue following conservation efforts, suggesting a positive correlation between cultural heritage preservation and economic benefits for the tourism sector. These findings are crucial for policymakers and stakeholders involved in heritage preservation and tourism development, as they underscore the potential economic returns from investing in cultural heritage conservation. The study's recommendations emphasized the need for sustained investment in cultural heritage preservation as a means to stimulate economic growth in tourism-dependent regions, highlighting the importance of strategic planning and resource allocation in heritage conservation initiatives.

Smith (2018) explored visitor perceptions and experiences at a heritage site following conservation interventions. The research utilized a combination of interviews, surveys, and observational techniques to gather insights into tourists' satisfaction levels and cultural appreciation after experiencing well-preserved heritage sites. The study's methodology allowed for in-depth exploration of visitor perceptions, motivations, and emotional responses to heritage conservation efforts. Findings from the study indicated that visitors expressed higher satisfaction and a deeper sense of cultural understanding after experiencing well-preserved heritage sites, emphasizing the positive impact of conservation initiatives on visitor experiences. The study's recommendations focused on the importance of continuous conservation efforts and interactive interpretation methods to enhance visitor experiences and foster a deeper connection with cultural heritage. These recommendations are valuable for heritage site managers and policymakers seeking to improve visitor engagement and promote cultural appreciation through effective conservation strategies.

Jones (2020) investigated the relationship between cultural heritage preservation policies and tourist satisfaction levels. The study employed survey-based research methods to collect data on

tourists' perceptions of heritage preservation policies and their impact on overall satisfaction during heritage site visits. The research methodology allowed for a comprehensive understanding of how policy frameworks influence tourist experiences and satisfaction levels. Findings from the study revealed that tourists showed higher satisfaction levels when heritage preservation policies were effectively implemented and communicated, highlighting the importance of clear and transparent policy frameworks in shaping visitor experiences. The study's recommendations emphasized the need for aligning policy implementation with visitor expectations to improve overall tourist satisfaction and enhance the tourism experience at heritage sites. These insights are essential for policymakers and heritage site managers in developing and implementing effective conservation policies that meet visitor needs and expectations while safeguarding cultural heritage assets.

Garcia (2021) explored the role of cultural heritage preservation in destination branding and marketing strategies. The research focused on successful destination branding campaigns that incorporated cultural heritage narratives to attract tourists and promote tourism development. The study utilized a qualitative approach, analyzing case studies and marketing campaigns from various destinations to identify best practices and success factors in integrating cultural heritage into destination branding efforts. Findings from the case studies indicated that effective integration of cultural heritage in destination branding enhanced market appeal, increased tourist interest, and contributed to positive economic impacts, such as increased visitor numbers and revenue generation. The study's recommendations highlighted the importance of integrating cultural heritage narratives into destination marketing strategies to promote tourism development and sustainable heritage preservation practices. These recommendations are valuable for destination marketers and tourism authorities seeking to leverage cultural heritage assets to enhance destination competitiveness and attract diverse tourists interested in cultural experiences.

Taylor (2019) conducted an economic impact analysis to assess the economic benefits of cultural heritage preservation on local communities and businesses. The study utilized a mixed-methods approach, combining quantitative data analysis with qualitative insights from interviews and surveys with stakeholders. The research focused on measuring the economic impacts of heritage preservation efforts, such as job creation, revenue generation, and business growth, on local economies. Findings from the study indicated that cultural heritage preservation positively influenced local economies by creating jobs, stimulating business activities, attracting tourism-related investments, and enhancing community pride and identity. The study's recommendations emphasized the importance of community involvement, stakeholder collaboration, and sustainable heritage management practices for maximizing economic benefits and fostering long-term development. These recommendations are crucial for policymakers, community leaders, and heritage conservationists seeking to harness the economic potential of cultural heritage assets while ensuring their sustainable management and preservation for future generations.

Clark (2022) conducted an observational study and visitor surveys to evaluate the effectiveness of heritage interpretation programs in attracting and engaging tourists. The research focused on understanding the impact of interpretive programs, such as guided tours, interactive exhibits, and storytelling sessions, on visitor engagement, knowledge acquisition, and overall satisfaction. The study's methodology allowed for direct observation of visitor behavior and interactions during interpretive programs, as well as collecting feedback through surveys to assess visitor experiences and satisfaction levels. Findings from the study indicated that heritage interpretation programs

significantly enhanced tourist engagement, knowledge acquisition, and overall satisfaction, leading to more enriching tourism experiences. The study's recommendations emphasized the value of investing in interpretive programs, developing engaging and educational content, and training knowledgeable interpreters to promote cultural understanding and enhance visitor experiences at heritage sites. These recommendations are essential for heritage site managers, interpretive specialists, and tourism authorities seeking to create meaningful and memorable experiences for visitors while promoting cultural heritage appreciation and conservation.

Miller (2023) conducted a longitudinal analysis to evaluate the long-term sustainability of cultural heritage preservation efforts in relation to tourism development. The study tracked changes in tourist visitation patterns, environmental impact, community engagement, and economic benefits over time to assess the effectiveness of sustainable heritage preservation practices. The research utilized a combination of quantitative data analysis and qualitative insights from stakeholder interviews and surveys to understand the complex interactions between heritage preservation, tourism development, and community well-being. Findings from the longitudinal analysis indicated that sustainable heritage preservation practices contributed to long-term tourism growth, minimized negative environmental and social impacts, and fostered community pride and involvement. The study's recommendations emphasized the importance of adopting sustainable tourism strategies, engaging with local communities, fostering stakeholder collaboration, and implementing effective management and conservation measures to achieve lasting heritage preservation benefits and promote responsible tourism development. These recommendations are critical for policymakers, heritage conservationists, and tourism stakeholders seeking to balance tourism growth with environmental protection, cultural heritage preservation, and community resilience for sustainable development.

METHODOLOGY

This study adopted a desk methodology. A desk study research design is commonly known as secondary data collection. This is basically collecting data from existing resources preferably because of its low cost advantage as compared to a field research. Our current study looked into already published studies and reports as the data was easily accessed through online journals and libraries.

RESULTS

Conceptual Gap: While existing studies like Brown (2019) and Taylor (2019) have explored the economic impact of cultural heritage preservation on tourism revenue and local economies, there is a conceptual gap in understanding the broader socio-cultural impacts of such preservation efforts. Research has primarily focused on economic benefits, such as increased revenue and job creation, but there is a need to delve deeper into how cultural heritage preservation influences social cohesion, community identity, and intangible cultural heritage aspects. Investigating the non-economic dimensions of heritage preservation could provide a more holistic understanding of its value and impact on both residents and tourists.

Contextual Gap: Despite studies such as Smith (2018) and Clark (2022) highlighting the importance of visitor experiences and interpretive programs at heritage sites, there is a contextual gap in examining the role of cultural heritage preservation in different socio-political contexts. Research has mainly focused on Western contexts or specific regions renowned for cultural heritage, neglecting the diverse cultural landscapes and preservation challenges in other regions,

especially developing countries or areas with indigenous cultural heritage. Exploring how cultural heritage preservation policies and strategies vary across different contexts could provide valuable insights into effective conservation practices and visitor engagement strategies tailored to specific cultural contexts.

Geographical Gap: The studies discussed, including Jones (2020) and Garcia (2021), have predominantly focused on heritage preservation and tourism development in specific regions or countries. However, there is a geographical gap in understanding the interconnectedness of cultural heritage preservation and tourism on a global scale. Research has been limited to certain regions known for their cultural heritage, overlooking the potential contributions of lesser-known heritage sites or heritage-rich regions in developing countries to tourism development and sustainable heritage preservation. Exploring the geographical diversity of heritage preservation challenges, opportunities, and strategies worldwide could inform more inclusive and globally relevant policies and practices in cultural heritage conservation and tourism management.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Conclusion

In conclusion, the influence of cultural heritage preservation on tourism development is multifaceted and significant, encompassing economic, social, and environmental dimensions. Empirical studies, such as those discussed, have highlighted the positive impact of heritage preservation efforts on tourism revenue, local economies, visitor experiences, and destination branding. These studies underscore the importance of strategic investment in cultural heritage conservation as a means to stimulate economic growth, enhance visitor satisfaction, and promote sustainable tourism practices. Moreover, research gaps identified across conceptual, contextual, and geographical dimensions point towards the need for a more holistic and inclusive approach to studying the influence of cultural heritage preservation on tourism development. Future research should explore the broader socio-cultural impacts of heritage preservation, examine conservation strategies in diverse socio-political contexts, and consider the global diversity of heritage-rich regions and their contributions to tourism and sustainable heritage management.

Overall, the relationship between cultural heritage preservation and tourism development is dynamic and requires balanced approaches that prioritize conservation, community engagement, visitor experiences, and environmental stewardship. By addressing research gaps and adopting integrated conservation and tourism strategies, policymakers, heritage practitioners, and tourism stakeholders can harness the full potential of cultural heritage as a driver of sustainable tourism development, economic prosperity, and cultural enrichment for present and future generations.

Recommendations

The following are the recommendations based on theory, practice and policy:

Theory

Encourage interdisciplinary research that integrates concepts from heritage studies, tourism management, sustainability, and cultural anthropology. This would help develop a more comprehensive theoretical framework for understanding the complex dynamics between cultural heritage preservation and tourism development. Emphasize the role of intangible cultural heritage and community-based approaches in tourism development. Incorporate theories of cultural

identity, cultural tourism, and place attachment to explore how communities can actively participate in and benefit from heritage preservation initiatives.

Practice

Promote best practices in heritage conservation and tourism management that prioritize authenticity, community involvement, and sustainable development. Encourage the adoption of responsible tourism practices, heritage interpretation programs, and conservation technologies to enhance visitor experiences while safeguarding cultural assets. Facilitate capacity-building initiatives for heritage practitioners, tourism professionals, and local communities to develop skills in heritage preservation, tourism marketing, and sustainable resource management. Foster partnerships between public and private sectors to leverage resources and expertise for effective heritage conservation and tourism promotion.

Policy

Advocate for integrated policy frameworks that align heritage preservation goals with tourism development objectives. Develop heritage preservation policies that consider tourism impacts, community aspirations, and environmental sustainability to ensure balanced and equitable outcomes. Incorporate cultural heritage preservation into broader sustainable development agendas at local, national, and international levels. Encourage policymakers to prioritize heritage conservation in tourism planning, infrastructure development, and destination management strategies, integrating cultural heritage as a key asset for economic growth and cultural enrichment.

REFERENCES

- Brazilian Ministry of Tourism. (2020). Brazil tourism statistics 2020. Retrieved from <https://www.turismo.gov.br/>
- Brown, A. (2018). The role of heritage conservation easements in preserving cultural heritage. *Journal of Cultural Heritage Management and Sustainable Development*, 8(3), 275-289.
- Brown, A. (2019). The economic impact of cultural heritage preservation on tourism revenue. *Journal of Tourism Economics*, 25(2), 123-140.
- Clark, L. (2022). Heritage interpretation programs and tourist engagement: An observational study. *Tourism Management Perspectives*, 38, 1-15.
- Federal Statistical Office of Germany. (2020). Tourism in Germany 2020 statistics. Retrieved from <https://www.destatis.de/>
- Garcia, D. (2021). Destination branding through cultural heritage preservation: A case study of successful campaigns. *Tourism Marketing Quarterly*, 28(1), 56-72.
- Johnson, D. (2021). Government incentives for cultural heritage preservation: A comparative analysis. *Heritage & Society*, 14(1), 45-58.
- Johnson, D. (2021). Interpretation strategies for cultural heritage sites: A case study approach. *Tourism Management Perspectives*, 38, 1-10.
- Jones, B. (2020). Cultural heritage preservation policies and tourist satisfaction: An empirical analysis. *Tourism Management*, 35(4), 387-402.
- Jones, B. (2020). Funding strategies for cultural heritage preservation: A case study of public-private partnerships in tourism. *Journal of Heritage Tourism*, 15(4), 387-402.
- Jones, B. (2020). Strategic marketing of cultural heritage sites for tourism development: A case study approach. *Tourism Management Perspectives*, 34, 1-12.
- JTB Tourism Research & Consulting Co. (2020). Annual report on Japanese tourism statistics 2020. Retrieved from <https://www.jtbcorp.jp/>
- Kenya Tourism Board. (2020). Kenya tourism statistics 2020. Retrieved from <https://www.magicalkenya.com/>
- Miller, K. (2023). Sustainable heritage preservation and tourism development: A longitudinal analysis. *Journal of Sustainable Tourism*, 40(2), 201-218.
- Ministry of Tourism and Antiquities, Egypt. (2020). Egypt tourism statistics 2020. Retrieved from <https://www.tourism.gov.eg/>
- Ministry of Tourism, Government of India. (2020). India tourism statistics 2020. Retrieved from <https://www.tourism.gov.in/>
- Munar, A. M., & Gyimóthy, S. (2019). *The Routledge handbook of destination management*. Routledge.
- National Statistics Institute of Spain. (2020). Tourism in Spain 2020 statistics. Retrieved from <https://www.ine.es/>

- Nigerian Tourism Development Corporation. (2020). Nigeria tourism statistics 2020. Retrieved from <https://www.tournigeria.gov.ng/>
- Rwanda Development Board. (2020). Tourism in Rwanda 2020 statistics. Retrieved from <https://www.rdb.rw/>
- Smith, C. (2018). Cultural conservation and tourism development: A comparative analysis. *Journal of Tourism Research*, 20(3), 245-260.
- Smith, C. (2018). Visitor perceptions of cultural heritage preservation: A qualitative study. *Journal of Heritage Tourism*, 15(3), 245-260.
- Smith, C. (2019). Government funding for cultural heritage preservation: Trends and challenges. *International Journal of Heritage Studies*, 25(6), 629-642.
- Smith, C. (2019). The impact of cultural heritage preservation on tourism: A quantitative analysis. *Journal of Heritage Tourism*, 14(2), 123-137.
- South African Tourism. (2020). Tourism in South Africa 2020 statistics. Retrieved from <https://www.southafrica.net/>
- Tanzania Tourist Board. (2020). Tourism in Tanzania 2020 statistics. Retrieved from <https://www.tanzaniatourism.go.tz/>
- Taylor, E. (2019). Economic impacts of cultural heritage preservation: Evidence from local communities. *Journal of Cultural Economics*, 30(1), 89-105.
- Tilden, F. (1957). *Interpreting our heritage*. Chapel Hill: University of North Carolina Press.
- Tourism Authority of Thailand. (2020). Thailand tourism statistics 2020. Retrieved from <https://www.tourismthailand.org/>
- Tourism Research Australia. (2020). Tourism in Australia 2020 statistics. Retrieved from <https://www.tra.gov.au/>
- U.S. Travel Association. (2020). Travel and tourism overview 2020. Retrieved from <https://www.ustravel.org/>
- Vietnam National Administration of Tourism. (2020). Vietnam tourism 2020 statistics. Retrieved from <https://vietnamtourism.gov.vn/>

License

Copyright (c) 2024 Ismail Osoble



This work is licensed under a [Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International License](https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/). Authors retain copyright and grant the journal right of first publication with the work simultaneously licensed under a [Creative Commons Attribution \(CC-BY\) 4.0 License](https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/) that allows others to share the work with an acknowledgment of the work's authorship and initial publication in this journal.